MINUTES OF WORK SESSION
OF THE NEWPORT NEWS CITY COUNCIL
HELD IN THE 10" FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
2400 Washington Avenue
April 27, 2010
3:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Tina L. Vick (left at 4:30 p.m.); Joseph\&hitaker; Dr. Patricia P. Woodbury; Herbert
H. Bateman, Jr.; Joe S. Frank; Madeline McMillamiyad at 3:15 p.m.) and Sharon Scott --------—7

ABSENT: None -0

OTHERS PRESENT: Neil Morgan; Stuart Katz; Mabel SMagton Jenkins; Alan Archer; Cynthia
Rohlf; Wanda Pierre; Lisa Cipriano; Steve Carperéephen Hawks; Chad Pritchett; Bill Keeler; Robyn
Rose; Monique Warren; Cleder Jones; Charles CrowBdnilla Bele; Linda Kriner; Pixie Killibrew;
Carol Meredith, Thomas Herbert; Alonzo Bell; Sdatbold; Dan Curran; John Procyson, Kim Lee; Jerri
Wilson; Joe Lawlor; Jennifer Walker and Pamela Eesh

l. FY 2011 Budget Discussion
* Final Revenue Estimates

Mr. Neil Morgan, City Manager, explained, in orde finalize the revenue estimates in
the FY2011 Recommended Budget, he and the Budaféthsid been waiting for the final decision from
the veto session of the General Assembly, anditla¢ figures on the apartment valuation from thalRe
Estate Assessor’s Office. He explained that chaunggde by the General Assembly appeared to balance
out and did not affect the revenue in the FY201&drenended Budget. City Manager Morgan reported
that the property tax revenue estimate had riser$§0,000, which was based on the apartment
valuations that came in after the original recomdeehbudget had been released. Instead of $410.5
million in the General Fund, the final amount wolle $411 million. He reminded City Council that
they had the option to restore items to the budgetg that $500,000. He recommended, if there were
remaining funds, restoring some of the cash capit®2 million that was cut from the FY2011 budget.
Restoring cash capital would prevent using resemasn the purchase of a fire truck or school bus
became necessary. City Manager Morgan explaingdhta had approached the Department of Parks,
Recreation and Tourism to inquire whether, withowgating new programs or hiring new supervisors,
they could hire a few more than the usual numbehighh school and college students to keep them
productive over the summer. The cost would be (% ,per employee, which meant 10 additional
summer employees could be hired for $40,000. H@a@;med that this could be accomplished without
creating additional bureaucracy. He reiterated] thahis opinion, any remaining funds should beduto
restore cash capital and secondly to hire additista@ents for the summer.

Ms. Lisa Cipriano, Director, Department of Budgetd Evaluation, explained that
estimates in the City Manager’'s FY 2011 Recommerisdtet were accurate with final State revenues.
She explained that after the State budget sessaancampleted, the only reduction was $102,000 for
Juvenile Services programs. Ms. Cipriano indicatleat all other revenues were holding true to
projection for the § and &' quarters of FY2010. She reiterated that the negarstimates for real estate
taxes would increase by $500,000.

Councilwoman Woodbury asked for clarification the City Manager's suggestion that
excess funds be used for cash capital and sumrherrher, than being used to restore eliminated
positions.



Page 2
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

City Manager Morgan noted that the Commissiori¢gh® Revenue was on the agenda to
provide a presentation on the elimination of jab$iér department. He stated that his recommendatio
was for the use of excess funds, after City Couatiled, removed and adjusted other items, be placed
cash capital and used for summer jobs.

» Conference Center Marketing Funding

Mayor Frank advised that a letter was receivethfMr. William Hudgins, President and
CEO, Harvey Lindsay Development Services Grouplirong) their views on the Marriott Conference
Center annual marketing contribution (a copy of Mudgins letter dated April 23, 2010 is attached an
made part of these minutes.)

Mayor Frank stated that he was involved, to saiegree, when the conference center
was negotiated. In order to obtain financing amanike the project viable, $300,000, which was the
difference between projected costs and projectednrees, was needed. The negotiations brought the
conference center, the Marriott name brand, andalaérvice hotel to Newport News and resulted in a
commitment to fund $300,000 per year for marketiaiper than just a transfer payment. Mayor Frank
explained that the term “moral obligation” was gdkterm inserted by the City Attorney becauseGlg
Council, at the time of the agreement, could ndigake a future City Council to the cost. He expdal it
was agreed that the City Manager would recommeadb800,000 in his budget each fiscal year and it
would be City Council’'s decision whether to apprafe the funds on an annual basis. It was higbeli
that an obligation was made for reasons that wppeopriate to facilitate the addition of a full giee
hotel. He felt that the advertising would bendfi¢ larger community, not just the conference aente
Mayor Frank was of the view that an obligation &y phe $300,000 existed.

Vice Mayor Whitaker agreed with Mayor Frank tlaatommitment was made and must
be honored.

Councilwoman McMillan strongly disagreed that ahligation was made for the
$300,000 marketing costs. She felt, to give oneugemoney and not others, was a “slap in the fexe”
those who spent their own money and were struggbrgurvive. She agreed that an obligation to fund
some of the marketing did exist because the coméereenter was City owned, but did not agree that
$300,000 was appropriate.

Mayor Frank reminded that the developer originakeded the $300,000 to make the
plan work, and requested a direct contributionhi® ¢nterprise. He felt that marketing the confegen
center would benefit others because not everyaeadihg a conference would stay at the Marriott, in
addition to the fact that visitors spent moneyestaurants and other venues. He reiterated thaetm
“moral obligation” came from the City Attorney’s wde that future City Council members could not be
obligated to the $300,000.

Councilwoman McMillan requested an itemizationtloé marketing expenses to show
what was spent on print, media, promotional itemms] actual direct marketing. City Manager Morgan
explained that the marketing program was auditeulially; however, he felt there was another level of
detail beyond the audit. He stated that a portibthe funding was used for personnel to market the
conference center, and a range of other activities.



Page 3
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

Councilwoman McMillan stated that personnel ca$tsuld be part of operational costs,
not marketing costs.

City Manager Morgan stated, in his FY 2011 Recemded Budget, $200,000 of the
marketing funding was in the General Fund, with theaining $100,000 funded by the Economic
Development Authority (EDA).

Councilwoman McMillan suggested a 50/50 splitwesn the General Fund and the
EDA.

Mayor Frank responded that it would be more parent to leave the money in the
General Fund. He reminded that EDA money was @ipey.

Councilwoman McMillan reiterated that a base amtavas obligated, but that marketing
one facility should not be at the $300,000 leveie Slisagreed that an obligation existed to fund
marketing at the $300,000 level.

Councilwoman Scott expressed concern that otheinbsses would perceive that
obligations made were not being met, which woult lnok favorable when bringing businesses to the
City. She did not agree with eliminating the fumgli but thought phasing down over time should be
considered.

Councilwoman Vick suggested a meeting with theridtt and the EDA to advise all
parties that funding could be reduced in the FY20d@get.

Councilwoman McMillan stated that the $300,000igattion had been supported for
many years, but the facility had stabilized and wasl known. She suggested a base amount of
$100,000 to $150,000. Councilman Bateman questidghe suggested base amount and inquired how
the estimate was substantiated.

Councilwoman Woodbury stated that she was naCityy Council when the agreement
was made. She agreed that the conference cengedeiag well and to sustain funding at that the
$300,000 level was not right. She indicated thalping to get the conference center started was
acceptable, but it should become self sufficie@he reminded that the City Manager requested all
departments to make cuts; therefore, this expermad be reduced.

There was consensus among City Council to alleev&300,000 marketing funding for
FY2011. The City Manager was instructed to megth wourism groups and Marriott representatives to
discuss a new approach.

e Leaf Collection

Mayor Frank stated there were two sides to theddeaf collection problem: 1) the cost
of providing the service and 2) environmental issuéle supported retaining loose leaf collection fo
FY2011 and that the matter be reviewed by the Migpager, with a report on a plan for FY2012. He
reminded that City Council should be sensitivedwirsgs on one side that might add costs to therothe
side.



Page 4
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

Councilwoman McMillan requested information abdeaf collection in the City of
Norfolk.

City Manager Morgan was unsure of the leaf ctitbecprocedures in the City of Norfolk
but was aware that the City of Hampton require@aits to bag leaves, which were then sent on to a
centralized mulching operation or facility. CityaMager Morgan stated that he could support loae le
collection for FY2011 and would be prepared to metin the late summer or fall of 2010 to discuss
alternatives.

City Manager Morgan explained that environmeigalies were a concern. He agreed
that recycling was good, but proposed revisionshi Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)
stormwater permit would either prohibit or greatlymplicate loose leaf collection with the theorgtth
debris could get into the storm drains, causingrenmental issues.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired about the timerfra for a decision by the DEQ.

City Attorney Katz explained that a bill was ihet General Assembly to delay the
decision, and another bill pending, which wouldabBsh a new implementation date. He believed that
the bill requiring a new implementation date hadsesl. He stated that the recycling and stormwater
consequences could both be expensive for the mitiagENewport News.

City Manager Morgan stated that the revisionthto permit would allow for loose leaf
collection in FY2011, but a plan needed to be atelby FY2012.

Councilwoman McMillan suggested a video by Vidroduction Services, and displayed
on Newport News TV, to demonstrate alternate mettoddeaf disposal, such as composting.

City Manager Morgan suggested the creation ofamtto work out different issues
regarding loose leaf collection and report bac&ity Council.

Councilwoman Vick requested clarification on dstaf the $150,000 cost to perform
loose leaf collection. City Manager Morgan expégirthat the $150,000 for FY2011 loose leaf coltecti
included the cost to Vehicle Services for mainteearand the cost to Public Works for overtime. He
explained that if loose leaf collection was conéidun the future, there would be a need to repthee
vacuum equipment.

Councilwoman Woodbury stated that she had spd&eowners of small lawn care
companies who voiced concern that they would beeradly affected by the elimination of loose leaf
collection. She reminded that elderly citizensIdowot bag all of their leaves. She suggested that
citizens would be willing to pay for the delivery mulch, with the revenue used for the upkeep of
vehicles. She also asked the City Manager to tigats waste in the form of too many employees and
too many trucks sitting idle during collection.

Councilwoman Scott suggested an annual fee oft@Zubsidize equipment costs. She
felt that most citizens would agree to the nomfaalto keep the service.

There was consensus among City Council to coatinose leaf collection for FY2011, at
a cost of $150,000, and to ask the City Managegtion with suggested alternatives for FY2012.



Page 5
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

« Commissioner of the Revenue

City Manager Morgan introduced Ms. Pricilla Befggmmissioner of the Revenue, to
provide a presentation on the role of her office.

Ms. Bele referenced a memo and position papensded to City Council regarding the
elimination of the State income tax operation ie tfffice of the Commission of the Revenue (a cdpy o
Ms. Bele’'s memo dated March 22, 2010 and the positiapers are attached and made part of these
minutes). She reminded the City Manager’'s FY20&tdRmended Budget proposed the elimination of
the State Income Tax Division in the Office of themmissioner of the Revenue. She requested that th
funding be restored.

Ms. Bele informed City Council that the Commisso of the Revenue was responsible
for the assessment of more than $125 million irenee annually (a copy of Ms. Bele’s list of taxes
assessed, and services provided, is attached atwlpaat of these minutes).

Ms. Bele explained that the Commissioner of tkedRiue’s office was arranged in seven
divisions, or cost centers, for budgeting purposgse divisions were:

¢ Administration

* Personal Property

* Business License

* Business Related Taxes
* Business Audit

« Satellite

e State Income Tax

She explained that the divisions were set up dweryears as the department was tasked with adalition
responsibilities and taxes were assessed. Theararland responsibilities had increased; howeber, t
divisions had not been modified.

Ms. Bele provided a brief history on the Stateolme Tax Division and the duties that
was mandated by State Code, which were preparatistate income tax returns and resolution of eitiz
problems with the Department of Taxation. Shedatid that the number of returns processed was
greater in the past because the work was perfommeaually, which required a larger staff that only
processed income tax returns. Due to the implestient of automated systems, such as i-file andee-fi
the staff size decreased by half, leaving one gead two accounting technicians. She informeg Cit
Council that when the State Income Tax Divisionuaieg the responsibility of the DMV Select, no new
staff were added. The responsibility was added asrtnership with the State. Of each transaction
processed, 4.5% was provided back to the City hadaxpayer was given a $5 discount for using the
DMV Select. Ms. Bele stated that the State Incdime Division was also responsible for the Real testa
Tax Relief program (research and record keepingetdy those who qualified received the assistance
and those that did not qualify, did not receiveisiaace. Ms. Bele acknowledged Ms. Linda Kriner,
Deputy Commissioner of the Revenue |, for stepgingof her comfort zone to address City Council at
the April 13, 2010 Regular City Council meetingheSstated that Ms. Kriner was the only administeati
support to the Board of Review of Real Estate Aswsents, which involved participating in
administrative tasks during hearings, and througtiiyear.



Page 6
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

Ms. Bele advised that the temporary staff sldbeclimination processed all mail in the
department, which included business license, fowtll®everage, and excise tax payments. This process
was critical in order to get the checks in to theaBurer within 24 hours. This group handled peako
property returns for vehicles, business propeng, machinery and tools, in addition to the Statmine
Tax returns.

Ms. Bele reminded that the City Manager had retpeethat all City departments perform
across the board budget reductions. She complitdtiae request by freezing two full-time positions
and eliminating one part-time position, for a saggirof $133,000. This was of particular importance
because all Commissioner of the Revenue positiiastdocal revenue, except for the small amount of
income tax services. Governor Kaine had propos$ed d@imination of 100% of the funding for
Commissioners of the Revenue and Treasurers. Tthé@nager requested additional reductions, which
resulted in a savings of $54,000 by freezing anitimah@l full time position. The savings from the
Commissioner of the Revenue totaled $187,000. QityeManager then recommended the elimination of
the State Income Tax Division, which was in additio the $187,000 reduction. She indicated that th
General Assembly had restored 85% of the fundimghfe Commissioners; however, the State Income
Tax Division was not restored by the City Manager.

Ms. Bele stated that the elimination of the Stat®me Tax Division would result in the
following:

« Elimination of an additional 6 full-time positiofithree of which were filled)
» Elimination of one part-time position

* Elimination of temporary staff

» Reduction of office expenses such as travel, mgrdind telecommunications
e $221,000 of cuts in addition to the previous $16@,0

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the satelloffice would remain open since
the State funding was restored. Ms. Bele reptieat the satellite office would remain open. City
Manager Morgan stated that the restored fundingeniagossible for the satellite office to remain in
operation.

Ms. Bele explained the impact of the cuts by ratirig City Council that the State Code
mandated that the Commissioner of the Revenue meréertain services for State Income Tax. She
indicated that the mandate could not be ignorelde dlimination of the support for the Board of Ravi
of Real Estate Assessments would be necessarythvthtaff reductions, as the concentration hdukto
on generating and collecting local revenue. Slygested that State funding would be further deekas
in the future because the funding was based ofirgtafThe elimination of positions would resulttime
decrease of local tax revenue, as State mandatédwenld have to be reprioritized. She stated Heat
office could not do the most with what they did hate.

Ms. Bele referenced an article in the April 2046ue of Governing magazine entitled
“Axing the Tax Man” (a copy of the article is atteedl and made part of these minutes). The article
discussed a community in Arizona that performedssthe board cuts to their fiscal generator.

Ms. Bele once again requested restoration offtimeling for the State Income Tax
Division.



Page 7
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

Mayor Frank asked for a consensus to restorduth@ing to the Commissioner of the
Revenue’s State Income Tax division.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the fundeuld be restored without any
adverse affects.

City Manager Morgan reminded, with the revisederaie estimate of an additional
$500,000, the restoration of the funding would begible. He explained that he did have rationate fo
making the cut, but saw merit in the points mad¢hieyCommissioner of the Revenue.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired as to the costégtore the division.

Ms. Cipriano stated that actual costs, with iasesl benefits, would be approximately
$225,000.

City Manager Morgan reminded City Council thathwthe restoration of both loose leaf
collection and the State Income Tax division, thstg would be approximately $375,000 of the $50D,00
of increased revenue.

There was consensus among City Council to regieréunding for the State Income Tax
division in the Commissioner of the Revenue’s Gfic

» Community Support

City Manager Morgan reminded at the April 13, @0%ork Session, City Council
reviewed the community support budget in greatidetéle requested further direction on how to
proceed.

Councilwoman McMillan requested additional tinte review the community support
categories.

Councilwoman Woodbury agreed that additional twmuld be needed to review the
community support allocations.

Councilman Bateman recalled discussion to makeateons across the board, with a
plan to reduce support each year.

Councilwoman McMillan stated that many organiaa$i, such as Preschool Partners,
requested start up money, which then became ayyaald. She stated that City Council needed toakno
who they were giving to, how much, and why.

City Manager Morgan expressed concern with detayhe discussion because of time
needed to prepare legislation for adoption of thdget at the May 11, 2010 Regular Meeting of City
Council.

Councilwoman McMillan reminded that the budged diot have to be approved until
June of 2010.



Page 8
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

Councilwoman Vick reminded, during the FY2010 ¢ed process, City Council
requested information be provided well in advantthe FY2011 process, to eliminate the need to rush
through the process. She expressed concern thabhating funding to some of the agencies could be
detrimental to the community.

Councilwoman McMillan stated that some agenciesevduplications, while others were
not effective. She expressed concern about citizelying on organizations that expected the Gity t
fund their entire operation. The groups must be &b stand on their own without City funding. She
suggested that community support be studied céyrdfatause the first obligation of City Council was
run the municipality and support services to thxpégers.

Mayor Frank suggested that City Council had malebligation to pass the budget at
the May 11, 2010 meeting. He felt City Council slaofollow through on the plan.

Councilwoman McMillan suggested that the citizemsuld understand the need for
additional thought and options. She remindedIdglly the budget did not have to be passed dutie.

Councilwoman Vick suggested that community suppemain level for FY2011, with
notice that there would be cuts in FY2012. Thisuldgorovide notice to the agencies, allowing them t
prepare for reductions.

Councilman Bateman stated that the City Managdrrhade cuts that were not brutal and
felt sure that the agencies knew the cuts were imanti

Mayor Frank expressed support for the City Manag#ecision to cut either 3, 5 or 7%
from community support agencies.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether any agexschad not received cuts.
Ms. Cipriano replied that the Foodbank and thd Rmss had not received funding cuts.

City Manager Morgan stated that the Boys ands@Mub funding was not cut, but An
Achievable Dream funding was.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether any agescihad funding in any other
category besides the City’'s community support ¢ouation. City Manager Morgan stated that the
Boys and Girls Club received Community DevelopmBlaick Grant (CDBG) funding, but was unsure
whether others received additional funding.

Ms. Cipriano stated that the Office of Human ABaoverlapped and received other
funding.

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether agencies ntedoon the percentage of funding
that was not provided by the City. Ms. Ciprianatatl that the information provided by the agenwias
very comprehensive. Community Support applicatimcuments were available on the web site. In
2009, a notice was placed on the web page to natigncies that they should expect some level of
reduced funding. She explained that part of thmiegtion process was to disclose additional fugdin



Page 9
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

Councilwoman McMillan suggested a community supfmard, such as the City of
Hampton. She indicated that all agencies wereghigtdeserving, but if discussion about cuts carth
and no cuts were made, nothing would be accomplish€ity Manager Morgan responded that the
CDBG process was somewhat of a community suppairtcho

Mayor Frank requested that the City Manager abtadre information on the process
used by the City of Hampton for discussion in t&@12 budget process.

Councilman Bateman suggested a matching fundpaoemt be tied to the support.

City Manager Morgan suggested that the cost viEvecould be greater than the grant
given. Audits could cost $5,000.

Councilwoman Vick stated that the regional effatbntained duplications and did not
demonstrate a cost benefit.

Councilwoman McMillan suggested that citizen inmould be welcomed as often times
citizens knew more about an agency’s performanae @ity Council. She also requested more oversight
on the Boys and Girls Club.

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether an organirathould be required to obtain a
percentage of their funding from other sources.

City Manager Morgan stated that most of the im@ation for agencies was readily
available.

Mayor Frank reminded that the School Board budgetied to be passed at the May 11,
2010 meeting.

There was consensus among City Council to actieptCity Manager's FY2011
recommended community support budget, with a rewietthe community support budget in advance of
the FY2012 budget process.

» Other

Waterworks Rate Increase

Mayor Frank reminded that the City Manager's Rewxmnded FY2011 Operating
Budget included a 6.9% increase in the seconavader rate, leaving the first tier unchanged.

Councilwoman Vick suggested a 5% increase instheond tier rate rather than the
proposed 6.9%.

Councilwoman McMillan reiterated that she did sopport summer conservation rates.

City Manager Morgan stated that the bi-monthlgrae for the average customer would
go from $1.47 to $1.20 with the proposed 5% sec@mndate increase.



Page 10
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

Councilwoman Vick indicated that such a largeréase in FY2011 seemed as though
Waterworks was trying to make up for the lack ofrarease in FY2010.

City Manager Morgan stated that a modest incréahéncrease would be best. He
reported that Waterworks did have some reservesghwhade the precise amount less important. He
explained that the philosophy of the summer rateldvbe open to discussion.

Mayor Frank reminded that the rationale for themmer conservation rate was to
encourage citizens to conserve water during themsmand protect the surge capacity. Water
consumption was down and had been trending dovengquéstioned the need for a rate differential.

Councilwoman McMillan stated that citizens wene@uraged to conserve water because
of the total water bill; however, in the summentl®nserved less water and were more concerned with
the need for additional showers. A summer consienvaate gave the appearance of taking advanthge o
citizens.

Mayor Frank agreed that the City Manager shoeldsit the summer rate, as it had lost
some of its rationale. He explained that watezgatent to an enterprise fund rather than to theetaé
Fund. The cost to maintain the systems and theatvater increased each year.

City Manager Morgan reminded that data reviewedanuary of 2010 demonstrated that
the water rate had risen annually with the codivafg over an extended number of years.

Councilwoman McMillan agreed that rates neededntoease with costs; however,
having so many rates was confusing to citizens.

Vice Mayor Whitaker stated that chemicals werg/\expensive. City Manager Morgan
stated that chemical costs were down in the pashfenths, but the overall cost of operation hadrris
He agreed that launching in a new direction toteraanew rate structure system would be possible.

Mayor Frank suggested the 5% increase in thensetier, with no increase in summer
rates, with direction to the City Manager to revibie overall water rate structure prior to nexang
budget.

There was consensus among City Council to rasé&\taterworks second tier rate 5%.

Councilwoman Scott opposed cuts to the Policeaiiegent with gangs and crime
plaguing the City. She recommended no cuts té’tiee Department in the FY2011 budget.

City Manager Morgan explained that the operatidnalget was reduced, eliminating
vacant civilian positions. Twenty new uniform pgasis, with eight filled, had been authorized. Twee
unfilled positions were frozen in the FY2010 recoemuled budget.

Mayor Frank suggested that the twelve positian$rdzen but retained in the budget, in
the event that other funding sources could be éatasuch as a COPS grant. This would provide the
flexibility needed to fill the positions quickly vem funding became available.

City Manager Morgan explained that police acadsiots were often over filled because
not every applicant completed the academy.



Page 11
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

Councilwoman McMillan suggested that the twelasipons should be patrol officers.
She expressed concern that there were three afficenight duty for the Denbigh area. Councilwoma
McMillan inquired as to the length of the COPS gsaand expressed concern about the cost of the
officers when the grants ended. Chief James Police Department, explained that a COPS grant was
not available for FY2011; however, the traditiohahgth was three years. He explained that most
agencies received three or four positions duedmtimber of requests across the country.

Chief Fox explained that City Council authorizéide positions for the Police
Department for gang intervention. He explained tieere was a gang in Newport News that was
responsible for two or three homicides, possiblyenolrhe gang unit that previously was responditie
being on the streets was now involved in a Fedexastigation which took them off of the streets.
took two years to get the Dump Squad off the streghich reduced crime, fear and intimidation iatth
area of the City. He suggested that gang elininateeded to be a strategy for the future. Heerted
a recent burglary in which a police officer's homas robbed and his gun was stolen.

Mayor Frank inquired if the twelve positions weednstated but not funded, would they
be filled without General Fund commitments.  Chiedx stated that reinstating the positions would
allow flexibility.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired about the policademy location and the use of
marked police cars. Chief Fox replied that thedaoay was operated in Newport News and was no
longer part of the State academy. He explainedntt@aked police cars could be used within the Gfty
Newport News but could not be taken outside ofGlity. This policy provided police presence when
officers were patrticipating in off-duty positionghe policy did not allow family members to ridethe
police car.

There was consensus among City Council to reémstee vacant police officer positions
in the event that funding should become available.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired about the numdéefice positions eliminated. City
Manager Morgan replied that three civilian positiavere eliminated.

Councilwoman Woodbury requested that the receaittyinated program that paid Fire
personnel a stipend for obtaining a degree betedgth City Manager Morgan stated that the pmogra
had been phased out in some other localities atfidaited that the stipend was not a factor in reant
He explained that no officer would lose their stige Tuition reimbursement was eliminated for all
employees, which gave Fire and Police an advartage others. Councilwoman McMillan explained
that she had suggested the change due to perseaqungf issues. Councilwoman Woodbury explained
that tuition reimbursement and education costs wepertant for employees.

City Manager Morgan indicated that advancemert p@ssible in public safety. When
an employee obtained a degree there was a gooccechthat they would have an opportunity for
promotion.

Mayor Frank reminded that $125,000 of the inczda$500,000 revenue remained
unbudgeted. He stated that he had sent lettdéosdabbusinesses asking them to voluntarily emphaye
students over the summer. He explained that ther latas sent to approximately 800 businesses. His
idea was that much value could be gained by emmipgiudents and keeping them off of the streets
during the summer. He reminded that the City Managated students could be added for $4,000 per



Page 12
Minutes of Work Session
April 27, 2010

employee. He recommended using a portion of theairimg $125,000 for the purpose of hiring
additional student employees.

Councilwoman McMillan stated that there may lmgeater priority for $125,000.

City Manager Morgan stated that cash capitalbesh reduced by over $2 million.

Councilwoman Woodbury expressed concern abousethpositions affected by the
reduction in force. City Manager explained that¢ flands could cover one or two positions, but he
reminded that position elimination did not occustjtor fiscal purposes.

Councilwoman McMillan explained that, while shaderstood the concern with the
students being employed, there were many smalkitidwat had been put on hold for some time, such as
landscaping of intersections at the entrance t&theon Route 60.

Councilwoman Woodbury suggested filling pot hateslefferson Avenue.

Councilwoman McMillan suggested that the busiresmmunity be given a chance to
respond to Mayor Frank’s letter and help sharddhe.

There was consensus among City Council to emignyadditional students during the
summer at a cost of $40,000, with the remaining (885returned to cash capital.

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS,
ON MOTION, COUNCIL ADJOURNED AT 4:40 P.M.

Pamela L. Foshee Joe S. Frank
Deputy City Clerk Mayor

Presiding Officer
A true copy, teste:

City Clerk



